
  

 

 

PALOUSE CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

Regular Council Meeting  

July 12, 2022 @ 7:00 pm  
Palouse City Hall 120 E. Main St 

  
CALL TO ORDER:   Mayor Sievers called the Palouse Council Meeting to order at 7:00 pm.  

  

ROLL CALL:   

  

City Administrator Misty La Follett took Roll Call. 
 
Council members present Sarah Bofenkamp, Bill Slinkard, Leslie Jo Sena, Samuel Brink, Travis Deerkop, Robert 
Brooks, and Ann Barrington.   
 
City staff present: City Administrator (CA) Misty La Follett, Public Works Superintendent (PW),  and Police Officer 
Joel Anderson.  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:    

 

Councilmember Brooks introduced a MOTION to approve the minutes from the regular council meeting on June 
28, 2022; the MOTION was seconded by: Councilmember Bofenkamp, and the MOTION passed. All other 
Council members present approved, and the MOTION passed.  

 
PUBLIC WORKS REPORT:    

 

Supt. Wolf presented a proposed clothing policy to the policy committee for approval.  

 

Councilmember Brooks asked about the life expectancy for the new motor for the pool heater, Supt. Wolf said 

that he didn't know.  

 

*PW report attached to the minutes.  

 

Dean Brown, a wireless water meter company representative, presented his product to the Council.  

 

Mr. Brown stated that these meters are far more accurate and will save the City staff a significant about of time in 

reading the meters as will inputting the data into the software. If the City were to replace all the water meters at 

once, the cost would be approximately $130,000 to $150,000. We can replace them one at a time as the current 

meter needs to be replaced.  

 

Supt. Wolf stated another significant advantage to these meters is that the City can read the meters year round.  

 

Mr. Brown's company can also install a SCADA system on the well, but they do not have a system for the 

wastewater treatment plant.  

 

Mayor Sievers asked about the meters' availability; they have an inventory of the meters now.  

 

POLICE REPORT:    

  

Officer Anderson presented his report to the Council. There were nine calls for service and four call-outs.  

 



  

 

 

Mayor Sievers asked for an update on the new police car, and Officer Anderson has not received the delivery 

date.  

  

*PD Report attached to the minutes.  

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT:    

  

CA La Follett stated that Supt. Wolf updated the Council on the status of the road oiling in his report.  

 

CA La Follett presented to Council the special levies resolutions for the roads and the pool due to the County 

Elections department by the end of July to make it on the November ballot. We need to solicit a for and against 

statement for both levies from the community. CA La Follett also reached out to the County on the procedure for 

increasing the general levy as the expenses to the City are growing, and the general levy no longer matches the 

costs.  

 

CA La Follett asked for a motion to approve the leave requests for Supt. Wolf, Evan Weargraff, and Officer 

Anderson. Each person requested vacation leave for 40 hours or more, and we need a motion to approve from 

COuncil as required in the Palouse Municipal Code.  

 

Councilmember Brink introduced a MOTION to approve the vacation leave requests for Supt. Wolf, Evan 

Weargraff, and Officer Anderson; MOTION was seconded by: Councilmember Deerkop. All other Council 

members present approved, and the MOTION passed.  

 

Council discussed the levies and the for and against positions in more detail. The Council also discussed the cost 

of operating the pool. The pool levy doesn't cover all the costs to run the pool. Some of the money comes out of 

the general fund.  

 

 

YOUTH ADVISORY BOARD REPORT:  

 

*No report submitted.  

 

Mayor Sievers stated that the YAB had not been meeting, but they have coordinated games nights at the park for 

the youth and their families.  

 

Councilmember Barrington asked of they would be giving their reports in person when school starts, and Mayor 

Sievers said he would ask  

 

OLD BUSINESS:    

 

The Council discussed the approval of the minutes from June 14, 2022, regarding the cancelation of the City 

Council meeting. A motion was made to amend the minutes to reflect that the Mayor said he had the authority to 

cancel the meeting. Councilmember Sena stated that the question was what are the standards for canceling a 

meeting. Upon reviewing the draft of the minutes, The Mayor noted that he felt the minutes were correct and did 

not need to be amended.   

 

Mayor Sievers stated that he felt the Mayor had the authority to cancel the meeting, but it is not specifically 

spelled out in the City code or policy.  

 

The meeting minutes for June 14, 2022, were correct as presented and did not need to be amended.  

 



  

 

 

Michelle Bly, with TD & H Engineering, gave Council a summary of the pre-construction meeting for the looping 

main construction project. Ms. Bly stated that the residents present gave great feedback about the project, and 

the starting location for the project was changed due to their feedback about the harvest and harvest traffic on 

Church Street. Ms. Bly said they are waiting for the revised construction schedule from the contractor.  

 

Ms. Bly also stated that submittal dates for payment were discussed. The TD & H Engineering on-site inspector 

for the project was also at the meeting. This inspector will be the eyes in the field for the City to ensure that the 

project is completed up to code and as agreed to in the contract.  

 

Councilmember Brooks had asked the question at the pre-construction meeting on how the water lines would be 

sanitized before being used. Ms. Bly said that it was the inspector's responsibility to ensure that the contractor 

properly did this. Rich Utzman from TD & H Engineering stated that all of the procedures for this are found in the 

DOT specification book. If the contract fails any of these tests in the DOT book, it must start over until they pass.  

 

Ms. Bly stated that they were supposed to have some costs back from the contract, but they did not receive them 

before the meeting. They discussed when pay estimates were due so they could be presented to Council for 

review and approval. Where the equipment would be stored was also addressed, and the contractor will be 

working four 10-hour days.  

 

The contract did ask for a retainage bond instead of the 5% retainage being withheld from each payment. This 

would allow the contractor to receive the full amount each time. The Council did approve this request.   

 

Ms. Bly is continuing to work with Public Works Board (PWB) to allow the City to use the additional funds that 

were awarded to the City to be used to complete the repairs on the F Street Bridge, but she has not yet received 

a definitive answer. If the PWB denies this request, the City could apply for another PWB loan to make the 

repairs, but we would not receive the funds until 2023. 

 

Mayor Sievers asked if we were ready to send the F Street Bridge repair project out to bid, and Mr. Utzman 

stated that it should be ready shortly. Mayor Sievers said that this project needs to be done as soon as possible.  

 

Councilmember Bofenkamp said that there is no money in the budget to make these repairs and asked Ms. Bly 

what the Council could do to help change PWB decisions. Could they write a letter to PWB? Ms. Bly offered to 

draft this letter and send it to the Mayor for his approval. Ms. Bly said she would ask PWB if we could do a 

change order for the looping main contractor and include the repairs bridge in the current project. 

 

Ms. Bly also said TD & H Engineering would be able to help with any applications the City would like to submit to 

the Transportation Improvement Board for any projects the City would like to complete. These projects are on the 

Six-Year Transportation Improvement Plan (STIP). They would also be able to engineer the Cove Sidewalk 

extension project. The Council discussed the possible projects in more detail.  

 

Supt. Wolf asked if the curb and catch basins on the completed Cove Sidewalk would be eligible for a TIB loan, 

and she said it would be.  

 

CA La Follett stated that we could add this to the new STIP due by the end of the month, and we will need to 

have a hearing at the next City Council meeting to approve the STIP.  

 

NEW BUSINESS:  

 

None 

 

 

 



  

 

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

 
Policy & Administration, Chair Barrington: No Report 
 
Budget, Finance, & Major Acquisitions, Chair Bofenkamp: Chair Bofenkamp reported that we need to get the 
money from the PWB for the F Street Bridge, as there is no money in the budget. She met with Katie Cooper, a 
former budget committee member, and she agreed.   
 
Streets, Properties, & Facilities, Chair Deerkop: No report  
 
Personnel, Chair Sam Brink: No report 
 
Water and Sewer, Chair Slinkard: No report 

 
Joint Fire Board, Chair Sena: No report. Councilmember Bofenkamp asked about the repairs to the Fire Station 
roof, and Supt Wolf said he would take a look.  

 
OPEN FORUM: 

 
Chris Boyd addressed the Council. Mr. Boyd donated some land to the City for the Shady Lane Trail in 2018. 
When they did this, the legal description in the paperwork gave the City more land than they intended. Mr. Boyd 
asked that the City's Attorney revise the documents. CA La Follett spoke with Eric Hanson, the City's attorney, 
and asked for approval from the City to change the documents.  
 
Councilmember Slinkard asked what the approximate cost for the filing fees would be, and Mr. Boyd thought they 
would be around $500.  
 
The Council agreed to have Mr. Hanson complete the necessary documents.  
 
Patty Rippee addressed the Council about the City not maintaining the alleys. Ms. Rippee asked how the City 
notified residents about maintaining the alleys. The Council discussed how to address this matter in more detail.  
 
Ms. Rippee also asked about the Palouse Arms Building and how to address the safety concerns surrounding the 
building.  
 
MAYOR'S REPORT:   
 
None. 
 
Councilmember Brooks asked if we have a contract with Munir Daud, the engineer for the completed sidewalk 
project, and Mayor Sievers stated that we have no further obligation to them.   
 
ALLOW PAYMENT OF BILLS:   
 
Councilmember Slinkard introduced a MOTION to allow the payment of bills. Councilmember Sena seconded the 
MOTION; the MOTION passed. 
 
The following checks are approved for payment: 
 
Claims Paid 07/12/2022 Ck. #12484-12499 $11,689.34 
Payroll Paid  07/01/2022 Ck. #12461-12483 $32,533.71 

 



  

 

 

ADJOURN: Councilmember Slinkard MOVED to adjourn; Councilmember Brooks seconded the MOTION: the 
MOTION passed. 
 
The council meeting adjourned at 9:07 pm. 
 

 

 
APPROVED: ________________________________   ATTEST: ________________________________ 
 


